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About ISTPL

IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (ISTPL) A joint venture company named
'Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited' (ISTPL) was incorporated on 19th April 2005, with 50%
equity participation by both Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and Soma Tollway Private
Limited (STPL) (a Construction Company in Private sector). Out of the 12,77,40000 total
shares,6,38,69,999 shares STPL and 1 share held by Soma Enterprises Limited (SOMA),
holding company of STPL. The balance 6,38,70,000 share are held Ircon International
limited (IRCON). The business of the company is executing BOT project for four laning of
Pimpalgaon-Dhule section of NH-3 from km 380 to km 265 in Maharashtra for NHAI and
Operation & Maintenance of the same.

The construction of the subject BOT project got completed in 2010-11 and accordingly
ISTPL is earning revenue from the Tolling on the entire stretch of 118.158 km.

The entire project is now under operation & maintenance phase to provide safe and
comfortable journey to the road users.
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(Appointed w.e.f. 05.04.2023)

Company Secretary (CS)
Ms. Shweta Chawla

a5

Banker(s)

Punjab National Bank, LCB
Branch- Hyderabad

State Bank of India,
Commercial Branch- New
Delhi

HDFC Bank- New Delhi
Punjab National Bank-
Nashik

AIA
A
(|

JV Partners

Ircon International Limted (IRCON)
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Contact Details

Company Secretary
Email id: cs.istpl@irconsoma.com
Tel: 011-26545780

Auditors

Statutory Auditor

M/s Gupta Nayar & Co.

Cost Auditor

M/s Pawan Dixit & Co.

Internal Auditor

M/s Sunil B Ghule & Associates

Registered Office
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Saket, New Delhi-
11001




Chairman’s Address

Dear Shareholders, e

| am delighted to welcome you all on the occasion of Eighteenth
(18th) Annual General Meeting of your Company. Thanks to all of

you for making it convenient to attend this meeting. It gives me

immense pleasure to present before you all the 18" Annual

Report of your Company including the Ind-AS Audited Financial

Statements, Boards Report, Auditor's Report for the financial
year ended 31st March 2023. With your permission, | shall take

them as read.

Brief about the Project

As you are aware, the Company’s main object was to undertake the project for Improvement,
Operation and Maintenance, Rehabilitation and Strengthening of Existing 2-Lane Road and Widening
to 4-Lane Highway of NH-3 (Pimpalgaon-Dhule section) in the State of Maharashtra on Build, Operate
& Transfer (BOT) Basis. The total length of the road is 118.16 km.

The Company has successfully implemented the project in 2010. The entire project (toll) road is being

operated & maintained to provide safe and comfortable journey to the road users.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, the total income of the company from operations for the financial year
under review has been reported at Rs.280.76 crore as against Rs. 243.23 crore for the previous

financial year. The income from operations has increased by 15.43%.

The profit before tax (PBT) for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been reported at Rs.145.22 crore in
comparison to Rs. 102.19 crore in year 2021-22. The PBT has increased by 42.10% primarily due to
increase in the toll revenue. The profit after tax (PAT) accordingly stands at Rs.119.66 crores due to

payment of minimum alternate tax (MAT).

The Company has been availing tax holiday under Section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 since
2015-16, which is for 10 years and 2022-23 being Seventh year. The Earning per share has also

increased to Rs. 9.37 per share as compared to previous year which was at Rs. 6.95.

Acknowledgement

| take this opportunity to thank on behalf of Board of Directors, the gratitude for the valuable assistance
and co-operation extended to the Company by the promoter companies and shareholders i.e Ircon
International Limited (IRCON), Soma Enterprise Limited (SOMA) and Soma Tollways Private Limited
(STPL), Auditors of the Company.

Sd/-
D. K. Sharma
(Chairman)
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (ISTPL)
Registered office: C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-110017
CIN No: - U74999DL2005PTC135055

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 18th (Eighteenth) Annual General Meeting of the

members of Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited (ISTPL) will be held on Thursday, the
31.08.2023, at 3.30 p.m. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at C-4, District Centre,

Saket, New Delhi-110017 to transact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

(1) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company including
the Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2023 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
Financial Year ended 31%t March, 2023 together with the Cash Flow Statement and other
Annexure thereof and the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and if
thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ordinary

resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Balance Sheet as on March 315t, 2023, and the Statement of Profit
& Loss as at that date together with the Reports of Directors’ along with Annexure and
Auditors’ Report thereon, circulated to the members of the Company along with the Notice
convening the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company, be and is hereby

received, considered and adopted.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

(2) To Regularize Additional Director, Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (D. K. Sharma) (DIN:
08556821) and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution

as an ordinary resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any other
applicable provisions including any amendment(s) or modification(s) thereof, if any, Mr.
Devendra Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08556821) who was appointed as an Additional Director
on the Board of Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited (ISTPL) w.e.f. 10.10.2022, be and is

hereby appointed as a Nominee Director of the Company.”

To Regularize Additional Director, Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (DIN: 00029900) and if thought

fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any other

applicable provisions including any amendment(s) or modification(s) thereof, if any, Mr.
Ankineedu Maganti (DIN: 00029900) who was appointed as an Additional Director on the
Board of Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited (ISTPL) w.e.f. 15.03.2023, be and is hereby

appointed as a Nominee Director of the Company.”

Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor for the financial year 2023-2024 and if thought

fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148 read with Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, if any (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), a remuneration of
Rs.38,000/- plus GST, be and is hereby ratified to be paid to M/s Pawan Dixit & Co., Cost
Accountants, appointed by the Board of Directors as the Cost Auditor of the Company for
the financial year 2023-24 for audit of cost records maintained by the Company.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

of Ircon-Soma Tollway Limited

Sd/-

(Shweta Chawla)

Company Secretary

FCS 11502
Date: 25.08.2023
Place: New Delhi

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of
the Company may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy
for any other person or member.

Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company at
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-10017 at least 48 hours before the commencement of
the meeting. A blank Proxy Form is enclosed.

Corporate Members are required to send a certified true copy of the Board Resolution,
pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their representatives to
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the
meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to
inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company provided

- | ANNUAL REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23|




IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

that not less than 3 days of notice in writing of the intention to inspect is given to the
Company.

Voting to be by show of hands in the first instance. Every member present in person shall
have only one vote on a show of hands. Only when a poll is demanded under section 109,
every such member shall have one vote for every share held by him/her.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-
23 is being sent by electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are
registered with the Company, unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of the
same. For members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are
being sent by the permitted mode.

Two members (shareholders) of the Company personally present throughout the meeting is
the Quorum.

Route map including prominent landmark for easy location of the Registered Office (venue of
the meeting) is provided at the end of notice.

A form of Attendance slip is annexed with this notice

. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice and in the Explanatory
Statement are open for inspection by the Members at the registered office of the Company
on all working days during business hours up to the date of Annual General Meeting.

. The Statutory Registers which should be kept open for inspection of members under the
Companies Act, 2013 are available for such inspection by the Members at the Annual
General Meeting.

. None of the Directors, KMP and their relatives are in any way concerned and interested in
any of the ordinary business items.

. M/S GUPTA NAYAR & CO. (ICAl FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 008376N) CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANT, WERE APPOINTED AS STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY AT
THE 16TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON 20TH JULY, 2021 TO HOLD OFFICE
FROM THE CONCULSION OF 16TH AGM TO 21TH AGM. PURSUANT TO NOTIFICATION
ISSUED BY THE MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS ON 7TH MAY, 2018 AMENDING
SECTION 139 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE RULES FRAMED THERE
UNDER, THE MANDATORY REQUIREMENT FOR RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF
AUDITORS BY THE MEMBERS AT EVERY ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”) HAS
BEEN OMITTED, AND HENCE THE COMPANY IS NOT PROPOSING AN ITEM ON
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS AT THIS AGM.

To: 1. All Shareholders of the Company

2. All Directors of the Company

3. M/s Gupta Nayar & Co., Chartered Accountants (Statutory Auditors)
4

M/s Pawan Dixit & Co., Cost Accountants (Cost Auditor)
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013—- SPECIAL BUSINESS ITEM:

Item No.2:

To Reqularize Additional Director, Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08556821)

Pursuant to Article 34 of the Articles of Association of the Company and Clause 8.2 of the
Promoters Agreement of the Company, Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08556821) has
been nominated by Ircon International Limited as Director on the Board of Ircon-Soma Tollway
Private Limited (ISTPL) representing Ircon International Limited.

The Board of Directors vide their Circular Resolution No. 82, dated October 17, 2022 had
approved the appointment of Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08556821) nominee of Ircon
International Limited as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 10.10.2022 pursuant to
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, he will hold office upto the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting but is eligible for appointment as Director subject to approval
of shareholders of the Company...

Accordingly, the Board recommends the above said resolution, in relation to appointment of Mr.
Devendra Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08556821) as Nominee Director, for the approval by the
shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors except Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08556821) (whose
regularization has been proposed) is interested in this resolution.

Item No.3:

To Reqularize Additional Director, Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (DIN: 00029900)

Pursuant to Article 34 of the Articles of Association of the Company and Clause 8.2 of the
Promoters Agreement of the Company, Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (DIN: 00029900) has been
nominated by Soma Tollways Private Limited as Director on the Board of Ircon-Soma Tollway
Private Limited (ISTPL) representing Soma Tollways Private Limited.

The Board of Directors vide their Circular Resolution No. 86, dated March 15, 2023 had
approved the appointment of Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (DIN: 00029900) nominee of Soma
Enterprise Limited as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 15.03.2023 pursuant to
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, he will hold office upto the date of the
ensuing Annual General Meeting but is eligible for appointment as Director subject to approval
of shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the above said resolution, in relation to appointment of Mr.
Ankineedu Maganti (DIN: 00029900), as Nominee Director, for the approval by the
shareholders of the Company.

None of the Directors except Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (DIN: 00029900) (whose regularization
has been proposed) is interested in this resolution.

- | ANNUAL REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23|




IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
Item No.4:

Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditor for the financial year 2023-24

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment
Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 31.07.2023 had appointed M/s
Pawan Dixit & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year
2023-24 at a remuneration of Rs. 38,000/- plus GST to conduct cost audit of the Company as
per the applicable Rules/Guidance Note, etc., or any amendments thereof.

Further in term of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 14 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration to be payable to the said Cost Auditor
approved by the Board of Directors is placed for ratification by the shareholders.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, in the said resolutions.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
of Ircon-Soma Tollway Limited

Sd/-

(Shweta Chawla)

Company Secretary

FCS11502
Date: 25.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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Route Map

IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi— 110017

N ITC

Venue of AGM > Sheraton

l/ Hotel

DLF Saket mall, Saket

H E

Max Smart Hospital

Hospital

Press Enclave Road

Malviya Nagar Metro
Station
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U74999DL2005PTC135055
Plot No. C-4 District Centre, Saket, New Delhi — 110017

Form No. MGT 11 — PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member
Registered address
E-mail Id

Folio No :
I, being the member holding shares of Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited (ISTPL), hereby
appoint:

1. Name : E-mail Id

Address : Signature

or failing him / her

2. Name : E-mail Id

Address : Signature

or failing him / her

3. Name : E-mail Id

Address : Signature

as my proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me and on my behalf at the 18t Annual General Meeting of the
company, to be held on Thursday, the 31st day of August, 2023 at 03.30 P.M. at Registered Office of ISTPL
or at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Res. Description For Against
No.

Adoption of Financial Statements, Board and Auditors’ Report for the
Financial Year 2022-23.

To Regularize Additional Director, Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (D.
K. Sharma) (DIN: 08556821)

To Regularize Additional Director, Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (DIN:
00029900)

Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor for the financial year
2023-2024

Signed this e 2023,

Affix
Revenue
NOTES: Stamp

Signature of Shareholder: .............cccccccceee.

1) Please put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the respective resolutions. If you leave the ‘For’ or
Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner
as he/she thinks appropriate.

2) This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed, stamped, signed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74999DL2005PTC135055
Plot No. C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi - 110017

Phone: 011-26545780, Email: cs.istpl@irconsoma.com, Website: www.irconsoma.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting venue)

Name of the MEMDET: . ...
Y0 LY (=T =Y = o [0 1= T

E-mail Id: oo Folio No. /DP ID & Client ID: ..c..eeeeeeeeee e

I/lWe, being the member (s) of shares of the above named company,
hereby record my/our presence at the 18" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on
Thursday, the 315t day of August, 2023 at 03.30 P.M. at Plot No. C-4, District Centre, Saket, New
Delhi - 110017 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signature of the Member

NOTES:

1) Members/Proxies are requested to bring the duly signed attendance slip to the meeting and

hand it over at the entrance.

2) Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting
are requested to send, to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing

their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (2022-23)

Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited,
New Delhi

The Members,

We have pleasure in presenting the 18th (Eighteenth) Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company together with Audited Statements of Accounts of the Company for
the year ended on March 31, 2023.

PRESENT STATUS

A joint venture company named 'lrcon-Soma Tollway Private Limited' (ISTPL) was

incorporated on 19" April 2005, with 50% equity participation by both Ircon International
Limited (IRCON) and Soma Tollway Private Limited (STPL) (a Construction Company in
Private sector). Out of the 12,77,40000 total shares,6,38,69,999 shares STPL and 1 share
held by Soma Enterprises Limited (SOMA), holding company of STPL. The balance
6,38,70,000 share are held Ircon International limited (IRCON). The business of the company
is executing BOT project for four Laning of Pimpalgaon-Dhule section of NH-3 from km 380 to

km 265 in Maharashtra for NHAI and Operation & Maintenance of the same.

The construction of the subject BOT project got completed in 2010-11 and accordingly ISTPL

is earning revenue from the Tolling on the entire stretch of 118.158 km.

The entire project is now under operation & maintenance phase to provide safe and

comfortable journey to the road users.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company has prepared the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 as

per Ind AS (Indian Accounting Standards). During the year under review the financial position
of the company is as follows:

(in T crores)

Sl. No. | Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Authorized Share Capital 130.00 130.00

Subscribed Share Capital 127.74 127.74

Reserves & Surplus 34.72 53.06

Revenue from Operations 280.76 243.23

Other Income 11.21 9.14

Total Income 291.98 252.37

Total Expenditure 146.76 150.19

Profit Before Tax 145.22 102.19

Profit After Tax 119.66 88.80

ol o Nl w N

—

Earnings Per Share 9.37 6.95
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the total income of the company from operations for the financial

year under review has been reported at Rs.280.76 crore as against Rs. 243.23 crore for the

previous financial year. The income from operations has increased by 15.43%.

The profit before tax (PBT) for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been reported at Rs.145.22
crore in comparison to Rs. 102.19 crore in year 2021-22. The PBT has increased by 42.10%
primarily due to increase in the toll revenue. The profit after tax (PAT) accordingly stands at

Rs.119.66 crores due to payment of minimum alternate tax (MAT).

The Company has been availing tax holiday under Section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961
since 2015-16, which is for 10 years and 2022-23 being Seventh year. The Earning per share

has also increased to Rs. 9.37 per share as compared to previous year which was at Rs. 6.95.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

“Your Directors have proposed not to transfer any sum to the General Reserve.”

DIVIDEND

For the Financial Year 2022-23, the Board of Directors have declared Interim Dividend for an
amount of Rs. 54 crores and Rs. 32 crores out of Surplus profit available with the company as
on 30.09.2022 and 31.12.2022 respectively. The said interim dividend was paid in equal
proportion to both the Shareholders.

DEPOSITS

No deposits have been taken during the period under review.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 M/s

Gupta Nayar & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors in the 16th
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 20.07.2021, to hold the office from
the conclusion of 16th AGM till the conclusion of the 21st AGM of the Company.

However, Pursuant to Notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 7th May, 2018
amending Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, the
mandatory requirement for ratification of appointment of Auditors by the Members at every
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) has been omitted, and hence the Company is not proposing

an item on ratification of appointment of Auditors at this AGM.

There were no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark in the Auditors’ Report on the

accounts of the Company for financial year 2022-23.
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
COST AUDITOR

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s. Pawan Dixit & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost

Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 for conducting the audit of cost records

maintained by the Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors appointed M/s. D.S. Sonawane & Associates, Chartered Accountants

as Internal Auditors for the financial year 2022-23, to conduct the Internal Audit of the

Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.130 crores and the issued, subscribed

and paid up share capital is Rs.127.74 crore.

During the financial year 2017-18, Soma Enterprise Limited (SOMA) have transferred
6,38,69,999 equity shares out of total 6,38,70,000 equity shares held by them in Ircon Soma
Tollway Private Limited (ISTPL) to its subsidiary company i.e. Soma Tollways Private Limited
(STPL).

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

The Company is engaged in the single business segment of BOT project at Dhule-

Pimpalgaon. Also, the Company is carrying its business in one geographical segment only.

Therefore, there was no Change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year

under review.

MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD’S REPORT AND END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the

Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which

the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

ANNUAL RETURN
A copy of Annual Return as required under Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act has

been placed on the Company’s website. The web-link as required under the Act is as under: -

http://www.irconsoma.com/annual-return.html

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed
by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s

operations in future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act,

2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of
energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities

undertaken by the Company during the year under review.

There was no foreign exchange inflow or Outflow during the year under review.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company has no Subsidiary. During the year, no company has become or ceased as

subsidiary/Joint-venture/Associate of the company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, every company having net worth of Rs. 500 crore
or more or turnover of Rs. 1000 crore or more or net profit of Rs. 5 crore or more during the
immediate preceding Financial Year. It is required to spend in every Financial Year at least 2%
of average net profit of the company made during the immediate three preceding Financial

Year.

In compliance with the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
has laid down a CSR Policy and Report on CSR activities carried out during the financial year
ended 31.03.2023 in the format as prescribed under rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

In financial year 2020-21, the CSR amount of Rs. 51,06,360/- was allocated to Proving Semi-
Automatic Unit for Production of Dignity Kits and installation of vending machine in the Schools
of Ramban, District in J&K. However, that said amount couldn’t be spent and remained
unspent. Thereafter, the Board declared the activity as “Ongoing Project’ and transferred the

amount to the Unspent CSR Account.

As the communication received from DC, Ramban the amount of Rs. 25,00,000/- was
transferred for execution of project. As the confirmation received from DC, Ramban that the
given amount was still unutilized and requesting for change in CSR project has been

necessitated in view of the earlier project
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
With reference to the letter received requesting to replace the CSR Activity for proving Semi-
Automatic Unit for Production of Dignity Kits and installation of vending machine in the Schools
of Ramban by “Purchase of diagnostic medical equipment urgently required in the Health
Institution, District of Ramban” in the interest of public at large and patient care. The same was
recommended by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board of Directors in their

respective meetings.

The CSR activity for an amount of Rs. 51,00,515/- with regard to purchase of diagnostic
medical equipment and DG set in the Health institution in Ramban, Jammu & Kashmir has
been completed. The fund was given in three tranches i.e. Rs. 25,00,000/-, Rs.21,51,515/- and
Rs. 4,49,000/-. However, the allocated amount was Rs. 51,06,360/. The amount of Rs. 5,845/-
was left with us. As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the
remaining amount was also transferred to activities mentioned under Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013 i.e. Clean Ganga fund dated 11/08/2023.

In financial year 2022-23, On review of the status of CSR Activities, the amount of Rs.
1,54,28,718/- was utilised out of sanctioned budget of Rs. 1,61,32,207/- and Rs. 7,03,489/-
remains unspent due to no response on the limited tenders received. It has been spent as
approved by the CSR Committee & the Board to transfer of unspent amount of Rs. 7,03,489/-
to Clean Ganga fund dated 07/08/2023.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities is also attached as an Annexure-A.

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Certificate under Rule 4 of
Companies (CSR) Rules, 2014, The Board of a company shall satisfy itself that the funds so
disbursed have been utilised for the purposes and in the manner as approved by it and the
Chief Financial Officer or the person responsible for financial management shall certify to the

effect. The copy of certificate enclosed as an Annexure-B.

DIRECTORS

e Composition of the Board
The Company’s management is headed by four non-retiing and non-executive
Directors and hold the position as respective nominee(s) of Joint Venture partners i.e.
Ircon International Limited (IRCON), Soma Enterprise Limited (SOMA) and Soma
Tollways Private Limited (STPL).

. Date of DIN
S.No. | Director Appointment

1. Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Chairman 10.10.2022 08556821
(nominee of IRCON)
2. Mr. Masood Ahmad, Nominee Director 01.10.2021 09008553
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(nominee of IRCON)
Mr. Ankineedu Maganti, Nominee Director 15.03.2023 00029900
(nominee of SOMA)
Mr. Rajeev Kalra, Nominee Director 28.03.2022 00833789
(nominee of STPL)

e Key Managerial Personnel

S. No. Key Managerial Personnel PAN No.
1. Mr. Harish Satyawali

Chief Financial Officer ANTPS4518F

(Designated as KMP upto. 26.03.2023)

Mr. Nilkar Umakanth

Chief Financial Officer AlJPK9944N

(Designated as KMP w.e.f. 27.03.2023)

Ms. Shweta Chawla,

Company Secretary AOKPC7900H

(Designated KMP w.e.f. 04.04.2019)

¢ Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
During the period under review, Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (DIN- 08556821),
nominee of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), has been appointed as Additional
Director/ Chairaman w.e.f. 10.10.2022 and Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (DIN-00029900),
nominee of Soma Enterprise Limited (SOMA) appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f
15.03.2023. Mr. Harish Satyawai has resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer
w.e.f. 26.03.2023.

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal (DIN-05308809), nominee of Ircon International Limited
(IRCON), resigned w.e.f. 10.10.2022, however nomination withdrawn by IRCON from

the Board of ISTPL consequent upon his attaining the age of superannuation.

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Katyal (DIN-08576256), nominee of Soma Enterprise Limited
(SOMA) ceased to be a nominee director w.e.f. 15.03.2023 on nomination withdrawn by
SOMA.

Appointment of Mr. Masood Ahmad (DIN-09008553) and Mr. Rajeev Kalra has been
regularised in the 17t Annual General Meeting held on 08" July, 2022.

Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re-appointment, if any: The
Company is not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and

Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

e Formal Annual Evaluation by the Board on its own performance: Not Applicable.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During financial year 2022-23, the Board of the Company has met 9 times i.e. on 11.05.2022,
13.06.2022, 20.07.2022, 07.11.2022, 14.12.2022, 23.01.2023, 01.03.2023, 03.03.2023 and
23.03.2023

Leave of absence was granted in terms of section 167(1) (b) of the Companies Act 2013

Number of the Board meetings attended by the Directors during the financial year 2022-23 is

as follows:

Name of the Director Number of the Board meetings
attended

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal (upto 10.10.2022) 3/3

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (w.e.f. 10.10.2022) 6/6

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Katyal (upto 15.03.2023) 7/8

Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (w.e.f. 15.03.2023) 1/1

Mr. Rajeev Kalra 8/9

Mr. Masood Ahmad 8/9

The Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 08.07.2022.

No Extra Ordinary General Meetings were held during 2022-23.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Committee was re-constituted by the Board of Directors via circular resolution passed
dated 17.10.2022 and 15.03.2023. The composition of the committee is:

Name Designation
Mr. A. K. Goyal (upto 10.10.2022) Chairman
Mr. D. K. Sharma (w.e.f. 10.10.2022) Chairman

. Masood Ahmad Nominee Director as Member
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Katyal (upto 15.03.2023) | Nominee Director as Member
Mr. Ankineedu Maganti (w.e.f. 15.03.2023) Nominee Director as Member

Two meetings of the CSR Committee have been held during the financial year 2022-23 on
13.06.2022 and 07.11.2022.

Number of the CSR Committee Meetings attended by the Members during the financial year
2022-23 is as follows:

Name of the Member Number of the CSR Committee
meetings attended

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal 11

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma 1/1

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Katyal 2/2
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Mr. Masood Ahmad 2/2
Mr. Ankineedu Maganti 0/0

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There is no employee who has drawn a remuneration of Rs.60 Lakhs or more per annum or

Rs.5 Lakh or more per month during the year 2022-23 in terms of Section 134(3) read with
Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
During 2022-23, the Company did not grant any loan or provide any guarantee or made

investment as per the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188
As per exemptions to a Private Company issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its

Notification dated 05.06.2015, any contract or arrangement by a private company with its
holding, subsidiary or an associate company shall not be treated as a related party transaction

and will not require approval under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and

implemented by the Company are adequate commensurate with its size and complexity. Your
Company believes that these internal control systems provide a reasonable assurance that the
Company’s transactions are executed with management authorization and that they are
recorded in all material respects to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with
established accounting principles and that the assets of the Company are adequately

safeguarded against significant misuse or loss.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULES
THEREUNDER:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder, the Company has

not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
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The Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e.
SS-1 (Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors) and SS-2 (Secretarial

Standard on General Meetings).

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets. We focus on

all aspects of the employee lifecycle. This provides holistic experience for the employees as
well. During their tenure at the Company, employees are motivated through various skill
development programs. We create effective dialogue through our communication channels to
ensure effective dialogue through our communication channels to ensure that feedback reach

the relevant team, including leadership.

Your Company continuously invests in attraction, retention and development of talent on an
ongoing basis. A number of programs that provide focused people attention are currently
underway. Your Company thrust is on the promotion of talent internally through job rotation

and job enlargement.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE:

The Company is into single reportable segment only.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board does not foresee any major threat/risk to the business of the Company.

APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016

There are no proceeding initiated/pending against the Company under the Insolvency &

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The provisions related to maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government

under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable on the

company and the company duly maintained the same.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

In accordance with section 134 (5) of the Companies Act 2013, the Directors hereby confirm
that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
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(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating

effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to place on record their gratitude for the valuable assistance and co-

operation extended to the Company by the Ircon International Limited (IRCON), Soma
Enterprise Limited (SOMA), Soma Tollway Private Limited (STPL), Lenders, Business
Associates, Auditors of the Company and the valued Client of the Company-National
Highways Authority of India. They also wish to place on record their appreciation for the loyal

and devoted services rendered by all the categories of employees.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Of Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
(Ankineedu Maganti) (Masood Ahmad)
Additional Director Director
(DIN: 00029900) (DIN: 09008553)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 31.07.2023
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Annexure - A

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTVITIES (2022-23)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Your Company is having a policy on CSR in line with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013. The objective of CSR policy is to strive for economic development that positively
impacts the society at large with minimum resource footprint and to promote a

comprehensive and integrated development through social and economic transformation.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Name of Director Designation / | Number of [ Number of meetings of
Nature of [ meetings of CSR | CSR Committee attended
Directorship Committee held | during the year

during the year
Mr. A. K. Goyal (upto. [Chairman 2 1
10.10.2022)

Mr. D. K. Sharma Chairman
(w.e.f. 10.10.2022)
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Nominee Director,
Katyal upto 15.03.2023 [Member

Mr. Masood Ahmad Director, Member

Mr. Ankineedu Maganti|{Additional Director,
(w.e.f. 15.03.2023) member

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.:
http://www.irconsoma.com/csr.html

. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).:
NA

. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). : Rs. 80,66,10,366/-.

(b) Two percent of average net profit
of the company asper section 135(5) : Rs.1,61,32,207/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects
or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years.

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (5b+5c+5d). : Rs. 1,61,32,207/-
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. (@) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project).: Rs. 1,54,28,718/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. Rs. 1,54,28,718/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year.

(in Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per

section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount.

Date of transfer.

Name of the
Fund

Amount.

Date of transfer.

1,54,28,718/-

Clean Ganga | 7,

03,489/~

07.08.2023

*The budget for the FY 22-23 was allocated of Rs. 1,61,32,207/- and Rs. 1,54,28,718/- was utilized. Thus,
Rs. 7,03,489/- remains unspent. The same was transferred to Clean Ganga Fund.

(9)

Excess amount for set off, if any: NA

SI. No.

Particular

Amount (in Rs.)

(i)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per
section 135(5)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years

[(iii)-(iv)]

7. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Preceding
Financial
Year.

Amount
transferred to
Unspent CSR

Account under
section 135 (6)
(in Rs.)

Amount spent
in the
reporting

Amount transferred to any fund specified

under Schedule VIl as per section 135(6),

if any.

Financial Year
(in Rs.).

Name of
the Fund Amount (in

Rs).

Date of
transfer.

Amount
remaining to
be spent in
succeeding
financial
years. (in Rs.)

2021-2022

2020-2021

51,06,360/-

51,00,515/-

11.08.2023

2019-2020

TOTAL

51,06,360/-

51,00,515/-

5,845/-

11.08.2023

*Note: - Rs.5,845/- was remains unspent and the same was transferred to Clean Ganga Fund
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8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

YES
v" NO

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Short particulars of
the property or
asset(s) [including
complete address
and location of the

property]

Date of
Creation

Pin code
of the

property
or asset(s)

Amount
of CSR
amount
spent

Details of
beneficiary of the registered owner

entity/

Authority/

CSR
Registration
Number, if
Applicable

Registered
address

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no,
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area
of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135.: Rs. 7,03,489/- remains unspent due to no
response on the limited tenders received. However, the same was transferred to Clean Ganga

Fund dated 07.08.2023.

Sd/-

Nilkar Umakanth
(Chief Financial
Officer)

Sd/-

Ankineedu Maganti
(Additional
Director)

DIN: 00029900

Sd/-

D. K. Sharma
(Chairman CSR
Committee)
DIN: 08556821

N.A.

[Person specified
under clause (d) of
sub-section (1) of
section 380 ofthe
Act] (Wherever
applicable).

In the said rules, after annexure-ll, following e-form shall be inserted, namely: Vatsalya

Foundation
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GOVERNMENT OF INDIA

MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS
OFFICE OF THE REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

Dated : 07-06-2021
NOTE - THIS LETTER IS ONLY AN APPROVAL FOR REGISTRATION OF THE
ENTITIES FOR UNDERTAKING CSR ACTIVITIES.

To,
VATSALYA FOUNDATION , A1-30, JAY RANCHOD SOCIETY,,BEHIND
SWAMINARAYAN TEMPLE,,VADODARA,GJ24,GJ,390015

PAN : AABTV3833H

Subject: In Reference to Registration of Entities for undertaking CSR activities
Reference: Your application dated 07-06-2021 (SRN-T21783964)

Sir/Madam,

With reference to the above, it is informed that the entity has been registered for undertaking
CSR activities and the Registration number is CSR00007982. Please refer the registration
number for any further communication.

Registrar of Companies

Note: The corresponding form has been approved and this letter has been digitally signed
through a system generated digital signature.
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Annexure - B

CERTIFICATE UNDER RULE 4 OF CSR RULES 2014

The Board of Directors of
Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited
C-4, District Centre, Saket,

New Delhi-110017

Subject: Certificate under Rule 4 of CSR Rules 2014

This is to certify that sum of Rs. 51,00,515/-and Rs. 1,54,28,718/- respectively disbursed towards
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial Year 2020-21 and 2022-23. It is
further certified that the amount has been utilized for the purpose and in the manner as approved
by Board in their 95th and 97th meeting held on 13.06.2022 and 07.11.2022 in compliance with
Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (CSR) Rules, 2014.

The details of CSR Expenditure in the Financial Year 2020-21 are as follows: -

Amount
Spent

Approved

Amount Remarks

Description Location | Unit Qty

Purchase of
diagnostic medical
equipment and DG
set in the Health
institution

5,845/- (Amount transferred to
Clean Ganga Fund dated
11.08.2023)

Ramban,
Jammu &
Kashmir

51,06,360/- | 51,00,515/-

Total 51,06,360/- | 51,00,515/- 5,845/-

*Note: The CSR work for providing Semi-automatic Unit for production of Dignity Kits and installation of
Vending Machines in Schools of Ramban district in the UT of J&K was declared as ongoing activity.
However, the said activity was replaced by new CSR activity as the DC, Ramban shown unwillingness for
providing and installation of vending machine. Therefore, the new CSR activity was approved and amount

was spent on purchase of medical equipment.

The details of CSR Expenditure in the Financial Year 2022-23 are as follows: -

SI.
No.

Description

Location

Unit

Qty

Rate/Unit
(Rs.)

Amount
(Rs.)

Amount
spent

Remarks

1

Providing
Street lights
with solar
lamps and
solar power
backup
system

Primary Health
Centre in
Chandwad and
Malegaon
Taluka, Nashik
District,
Maharashtra

No.

14
Locations

99,92,555

99,92,555

97,86,503/-

Completed

Providing
equipment for
open/green
Gym

School and
Collage
Garden, Dhule

9,84,710

9,84,710

9,82,350/-

Completed

Providing
Employment
to rural women
and their
livelihood

Nandurbar
District,
Maharashtra

6,33,541

6,33,541

6,33,541

Completed

Gadchiroli,
Maharashtra

6,68,541

6,70,503

6,70,503

Completed
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Providing &
fixing paver
block Zilla
Parisad
School
playground

Construction
of wall
compound at
school

Repair of
Class room
building of
School

Village
Bahaduri,
Taluka,
Chandwad

14,13,544/-

14,13,544/-

21,29,574/-

16,83,587/-

16,83,587/-

8,88,624/-

2,87,409/-

2,87,409/-

1,10,623/-

Rs.
31,28,821/-
was utilized

Solar roof top
system with
solar modules,
solar inverters,
solar structure
installation &
commissioning
of 3 KW

Gram
Panchayat
Bahaduri,
Taluka,
Chandwad,
Nashik

1,00,000/-

3,54,000/-

Solar roof top
system with
solar modules,
solar inverters,
solar structure
installation &
commissioning
of 5 KW

Zilla Parisad
School
Bahaduri,
Taluka,
Chandwad,
Nashik

1,00,000/-

5,90,000/-

Solar high
mast system
with solar
panel

Gram
Panchayat
Village area

1,00,000/-

2,36,000/-

Not
completed

Providing &
fixing the RO
plant with
water cooler

Malegaon
Taluka, Dhule
District

2,30,690

2,30,690/-

2,77,000/-

Completed

TOTAL PROPOSED EXPENDITURE (including GST)
TOTAL EXPENDITURE (including GST)

1,70,76,539/-
1,54,28,718/-

*Note: The activities mentioned in serial no. 1, 2, 3 & 8 are completed. However, the activity mentioned in
serial no.4 Rs. 33,84,540/- was allocated and the work was fully completed in Rs. 31,28,821/- Thus Rs.

2,565,719/- remains unspent.

With regard to activities mentioned under serial no. 5, 6 & 7 are not completed due to no response on the

limited tenders received.

Further, the budget for the FY 22-23 was allocated of Rs. 1,61,32,207/- and Rs. 1,54,28,718/- was utilized.
Thus, Rs. 7,03,489/- remains unspent.

Hence, Rs. 7,03,489/- pertains to unspent CSR amount for the FY 22-23. As per the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the remaining amount shall be transferred to activities
mentioned under Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The said amount has been transferred to
Clean Ganga Fund dated 07.08.2023.

Yours Faithfully,
Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited

Sd/-
Nilkar Umakanth
Chief Financial Officer

- | ANNUAL REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23|




Financial
Statements

(KY: 2022-23)




GUPTA NAYAR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2023 and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards(Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31%t March, 2023 and its profit, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs") specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 12 to the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements, Company
paid an amount of Rs. 100,80,00,000 to EPC Contractor which is not obligated in terms of
the EPC agreement.

Our audit opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the oth jon is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obt nac‘f‘. course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated. ‘ & .;
E t é; " ]

610, JAKSONS CROWN HEIGHTS,PLOT NO. 3B1, TWIN PISTRICT
CENTRE,SECTOR 10,ROHINI, DELHI-1 10085PHONE: 011-27864149, 9810200957, 9818462655
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing ("SAs”) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuylting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissionsy‘ﬁﬁféﬁ%s&ntations, or the override of
internal control. (<77 N\ -\
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in:

(i planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and

(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the p our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315t March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “"Annexure B” which expresses an unmodified opinion.

g) With respect to the Other Matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigation which would impact its financial position
except those disclosed in Ind AS Financial Statements;

ii. The Company does not envisage any material foreseeable losses in long-term
contracts including derivative contract requiring provision;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manne atsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until
the date of this report is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023,
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended 31t March, 2023.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended we report that,
according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not paid any
remuneration to its directors during the year.

For GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008376N)

Place: New Delhi (Par nér)
Date : Jo|S/ 2% (M No. 073295)"
UPIN: 23033295'B &Y Q Tx 5723
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY
PRIVATE LIMITED for the Year ended as on 315t March, 2023

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “"Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report on even date: -

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by
the Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use Assets and
Intangible Assets:

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant
and Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified by the
management in a phased periodic manner. In accordance with this programme,
Property, Plant and Equipment were verified at regular Intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets.

c) The title deed is held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or Intangible Assets during the year. Hence, reporting under Para 3(i)(d)
is not applicable.

e) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder Hence,
reporting under Para 3(i)(e) is not applicable.

ii. a) As the Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development, operations
and its maintenance and there is no inventory in hand at any point of time, hence
paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Hence, reporting under Para
3(ii) (b) is not applicable.

iii. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties. H orting under Para 3(iii) is not
applicable.
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iv.The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments,

A

guarantee and securities, which attracts compliance to the provisions of the sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

. The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits and

the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under.
Hence, reporting under Para 3(v) is not applicable.

.We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company prescribed by the

Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the Company and we are of the opinion that prima-facie the
prescribed ‘records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with the view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. As on 31%t March, 2023, there
are no undisputed statutory dues payables for period exceeding for a period more than
six month from the date they become payable.

b. Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on
account of disputes are given below:

Particulars Period for which | Forum where the | Amount (In Rs. |
the amount | dispute is pending | Lakhs)
relates

Income Tax A.Y. 2018-19 CIT(Appeals) 87.45 Lakhs

Income Tax AY 2012-13 ITAT NIL

Income Tax AY 2013-14 ITAT NIL

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been

610, JAKSONS CROWN HEIGHTS, PLOT NO. 3 B1, TWIN DISTRICT <,

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

. In respect to the borrowings:

a. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

c. The Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year
for the purposes for which they were obtained.

d. On an averall examination of the Ind AS Financial
raised on short term basis have, prima facie, n

term purposes by the Company. g

ts of the Company, funds
uring the year for long-

h'}tm
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X.

Xi.

e. On an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f. The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

a) The Company has not raised the money by way of initial public offer/ further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year. Hence, reporting under Para 3(x)(b) is not applicable.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management which
have been relied by us, there were no frauds on or by the Company noticed or reported
during the period under audit.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence, reporting under Para 3(xii) is not

applicable.

xiii.All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.,
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Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an adequate internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the
period under audit, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 is not applicable to the Company.

a. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Therefore, paragraph 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

b. The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Therefore, paragraph 3(xvi) (b) of the Order i licable to the Company.

AR ISTPL
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c & d. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under Para 3(xvi) (c) & (d) is
not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit

and the immediately preceding financial year

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly

XiX.

XX,

reporting under this clause is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Ind AS
Financial Statements and further strengthened by financial support assurance provided by
the Parent Company to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance
Sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

(a) The company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of other
than ongoing projects, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 till
the date of our report. However, the time period for such transfer i.e six months of the
expiry of the financial year as permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of the
section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed till the date of our report.

Financial Amount Amount Amount
year unspent on Transferred to Transferred
Corporate Fund specified after the due
Social in Schedule date (specify
Responsibility VII within 6 the date of
Activities for months from deposit)
* Other than the end of the
Ongoing Financial Year
Projects”
FY 2022-23 7.03 Lakhs NIL Not Transferred till
the date of our audit
report

(b) There are no amount remaining unspent for ongoin

under para 3{xx)(b) is not applicable.
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xxi. Paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company as the Ind Financial
Statements under reporting are not consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

For GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008376

wAYA L

~ &%
Satyabhama\Gtihta. A&
Place: New Delhi (Partner). "
Date : 620)5" LS (M No. 073295)

UPIN: 23633295 & 6,YQIXS324
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements of IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st
March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note"”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial
control with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31st
March, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Ind AS
Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008376N)

‘4 AY A Q
N

Satyabham Gupta
Place: New Delhi (Partrier)
Date : o%}b' 13 (M No. 073295)

UDIN: 23533995 @ 470TIX532%F
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)
q As at As at
Particulars potes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 97.37 89.86
Right to use assets 4 (0.00) 3.99
Investment Property 6 0.94 0.94
Intangible assets
-under SCA 5 17,388.53 23,153.03
Other non-current assets 7 36.28 36.05
Total Non-current Assets 17,523.13 23,283.86
Current Assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables - =
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 5,642.65 4,606.05
(it} Other bank balance 9 21,320.66 22,456.85
(iv) Other financial assets 10 219.84 161.26
Current tax assets (Net) 11 - 119.29
Other current assets 12 10,250.29 10,342.83
Total Current Assets 37.433.44 37,686.29
Total Assets 54,956.56 60,970.15
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 12,774.00 12,774.00
Other Equity 14 3,472.69 5,306.83
Total Equity 16,246.69 18,080.83
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 15 20,550.45 27,747.62
Lease Liabilities
Provisions 17 4.767.97 3.163,16
Total Non-current Liabilities 25,318.42 30,910.79
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 10,500.00 8,000.00
(ii) Lease Liabilities 16 - 4.18
(iii) Trade Payables 19
A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises
B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 758.23 1,492.76
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 1,484.80
Provisions 21
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 11
Other current liabilities 22
Total Current Liabilities 12,
Total Liabilities 38
Total Equity and Liabilities 54,

Notes forms integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For GUPTA NAYAR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(Firm's Registration No. 008376N) -~

Q
Satyabhama Gupk . P
(Partner) & )\i"'-‘!-—_wr o ;

Membership Nao. 0?3235_ 2!

Place: New Delhi

Date: 36’ )_’ 23
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March 2023

(Rs in Lakhs)

" For the period ended For the period ended
Particulats Notes Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations 23 28,076.84 24,323.53
Other income 24 1,121.31 914.12
Total Income 29,198.15 25,237.65
Expenses
Operation & Maintenance Expenses 25 4,574.89 4,043.36
Employee benefits expenses 26 60.36 64.76
Finance Costs 27 3,648.12 3,929.80
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 28 5,797.50 5,842.61
Other Expenses 29 595.25 1,138.04
Total Expenses 14,676.12 15,018.58
Profit before exceptional items and tax 14,522.04 10,219.07
Add: Exceptional items = -
Profit before tax 14,522.04 10,219.07
Less: Tax expense

(1) Current tax 2,555.93 1,335.85
(2) Previous year Taxes - N
Profit for the period after tax 11,966.10 8,883.22
Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (0.24) (2.38)
Total other comprehensive income (0.24) (2.38)
Total comprehensive income for the period 11,965.87 8,880.85
Earnings per share (Face Value Rs. 10/- per share)
(1) Basic (in Rs.) 9.37 6.95
(2) Diluted (in Rs.) 9.37 6.95
Notes forms integral part of the Financial Statements For and on behalf of the Board
As per our report of even date attached
For GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm's Registration No. 008376N) -
e, NEEDU MAGANTI S MASOQD I}HMAD
S QYD “*-,,b Additional Director Director
s e DIN-00029900 DIN-09008553

oo Cotiall—

NILKAR UMAKANTH
Chief Financial Officer

o & W
kf' % -\
§ ¢ = \JJU\(
5 SHWETA CHAWLA
Company Secretary

Satyabhama Gupta FCS-11502 - s
(Partner) N
Membership No. 073295 D. SRINIVAS

Chief Operating Officer

Date: 90\5 15

Place: New Del(ﬂ
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31st March 2023
(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars For the period For the period ended
ended Mar,2023 March,2022
A,CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit /{ Loss) after tax 11,966.10 8,883.22
Adjustment for:
Depreciation / Amortization 5,797.50 5,842.61
Interest charges 3,644.45 3,925.55
Income taxes 2,555.93 1,335.85
Interest incomes (1,098.97) (869.63)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE OPERATING ASSETS & LIABILITIES 22,865.02 19,117.60
Increase/(Decrease) in other Financial Liablities - Current 170.15 922.90
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Payable - Current (734.53) (675.29)
Increase/(Decrease) in long-term provisions - Non current 1,263.17 1,575.39
Increase/(Decrease) in long-term provisions - current (1,154.02) (4,300.61)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (5.70) (43.85)
(Increase)/Decrease in other non current assets (0.24) (0.30)
(Increase)/Decrease in current assets 92.54 72.44
(Increase)/Decrease in other Current financial Asset (58.57) (26.16)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 22,437.81 16,642.12
Income taxes paid (1,795.43) (1,366.11)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 20,642.39 15,276.01
B.CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (36.53) (6.62)
Interest received on deposits 1,098.97 869.63
Deposits in Fixed deposits(net) 1,136.19 4,380.00
MET CASH GENERATED (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2,198.63 5,243.00
C.CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of long term borrowings ki -
Payment of interest portion of Lease liability (4.18) (3.79)
Payment of Principal portion of Lease liability (0.23) (0.63)
Payment of Negative Grant (8,000.00) (8,000.00)
Dividend Payments (13,800.00) (8,200.00)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (21,804.41) (16.204.41)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,036.61 4,314.60
DURING THE YEAR
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial Year 4,606.05 291.45
Cash and cash equivalents at the end the financial Year 5.642.65 4.606.05
Net Cash Flow 1,036.61 4,314.60
Notes
1.Components of Cash & Cash edguivalents:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances in current account 5,641.74 596.41
In Term Deposit (original maturity upto 3 months) - 4,007.68
Cash on hand 0.92 1.96
Total 5;642.65 4.606.05
As per our report of even date attached For and on

zhalf of the Boaj
For GUPTA NAYAR & CO. .~ _ \
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm's Registration No. u?,s'aj?ﬁ_p::) . W 0% T o
fef A\ ANKINEEDU MAGANTI MASOQD AHMAD
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=f /4%, Additional Director Director
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' A % .: 1 |
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(Partner) g e > | =2 s W
Membership No. 073295 = A N SHWETA CHAWLA NILKAR UMAKANTH
;-2 (Company Secretary) Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi i i FCS-11502 >
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Chief Operating Officer
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL200SPTC135055
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. Share Capital:

a. Equity share capital

(Rs in Lakhs)

Movement during the period

For the Period ended
Mar 31, 2023

For the Period ended
March 31, 2022

A hare ital Number of Share capital

Bagticulors N:::::;M S(:mof.lannt)t shares (Amour:’t)
Shares having face value of Rs 10/-
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 12,77,40,000 12,774.00 12,77,40,000 12,774.00
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors = ] = =
Restated bal atthe b of the current reporting 12,77,40,000 12,774.00 12,77,40,000 12,774.00
period
Changes in equity share capital during the current year -+ - - =
Balance at the end of the period 12,77.,40,000 12,774.00 12,77,40,000 12,774.00 |
B. Other Equity (Rs in Lakhs)

Equity Reserves and Surplus
component of [Securities Retained
Particulars compound Premium Reserve |Earnings Total
financial
instruments
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 01.04.2022 - 5,306.83 5,306.83
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - o =
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period = 5,306.83 5,306.83
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 11,965.87 11,965.87
Dividend 13,800.00 13,800.00
Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31.03.2023 - 3,472.69 3,472.69
Previous Year (Rs in Lakhs)
Equity Reserves and Surplus
t of
Particulars co;.poundo Securities Retained Total
financial Premium Reserve |Earnings
instruments
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 01.04.2021 - 4,625.98 4,625.98
Changes in accountina policy or prior period errors - - =
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 4,625.98 4,625.98
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 8.880.85 8,880.85
Dividend 8.200.00 8,200.00
Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31.03.2022 - 5.306.83 5,306.83
Notes forms integral part of the Financial Statements For and on behalf of the Board
As per our report of even date attached
For GUPTA NAYAR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS == .
(Firm's Registration No. 008 L A o "b\
\;. ~ MNKINEEDU MAGANTI MASO
- e Additional Director

Satyabhama Gupta

(Partner) -
Membership No. 073295

Place: New Delhi

Date: Zm} S—‘ Q/rs

sl = ~

.. DIN-00029900

/ Company Secretary
/ JFES-11502
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

1

2.01

2.02

2,03
a)

b)

)]

Corporate Information

Ircon-Soma Tollway Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 19th April 2005 for undertaking Improvement, Operation &
Maintenance, Rehabilitation and Strengthening of existing 2 lane road and widening to 4-lane divided highway from Km. 265.00 to
Km.380.00-Pimpalgaon to Dhule Section of National Highway 3 (NH-3) on Build, Operate and Transfer basis in the state of
Maharashtra under the concession agreement dated 28th September 2005 with the National Highway Authority of India.

The Company is in compliance with Ind AS 115 - ™ Service Concession Arrangements”.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with IndAS

The Company's financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cast basis, except for the following items
Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

= Fair value of plan assets (if any) less present value of defined benefit obligations
Net defined benefit (asset)/liability

Assets held for sale fair value less costs to sell

The standalone financial statements are presented in INR which is also Companies Functional Currency and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs Rupees, except otherwise indicated.

(c) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets, liabilities (including contingent liabilities), income and expenses. The
Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results
could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in
which the results are known / materialize. Estimates include the useful lives of property plant and equipment and intangible fixed
assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, provisions for resurfacing
obligations, fair value measurement etc.

(d) Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access at
measurement date

o Leve! 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or
indirectly (derived from prices); and

o Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss,
as prescribed in Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of accounts along with the other notes required
to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of
duties and taxes and net of discounts, rebates and other similar allowances.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that the future economic
benefits would flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the activities described below. The Company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, type of transaction and specifics of the arrangement.

Toll collections from the users of the infrastructure facility constructed by the Company under the Service Concession Arrangement is
accounted for based on actual collection. Revenue from sale of smart cards is accounted on cash basis.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable rate.




d)

e)

f)

a)
2.04

2.05

2.06

2.07

Contract revenue for fixed price contracts is recognised only to the extent of cost incurred that it is probable will be recoverable till
such time the outcome of the job cannot be ascertained reliably. When the outcome of the contract is ascertained reliably, contract
revenue is recognised at cost of work performed on the contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion
method. Percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work performed to-date, to the total estimated contract costs.

Percentage of completion is determined based on the proportion of actual cost incurred to the total estimated cost of the project.
The percentage of completion method is applied on a cumulative basis in each accounting period to the current estimates of contract
revenue and contract costs. The effect of a change in the estimate of contract revenue or contract costs, or the effect of a change in
the estimate of the outcome of a contract, is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate and the effect of which are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the change is made and in subsequent periods.

For the purposes of recognising revenue, contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract, the
variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and they
are capable of being reliably measured.

For this purpose, actual cost includes cost of land and developmental rights but excludes borrowing cost. Expected loss, if any, on the
construction activity is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the
contract.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which such probability occurs.

Fair value gains on current investments carried at fair value are included in Other income.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date.
Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to receive arises.

Cash and bank balances I
Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances
which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term highly liquid investments being not free from more than insignificant risk of
change are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents, Bank overdrafts which are part of the cash management process is
included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

Cash flow statement |
Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from
operating activities is reported using indirect method. Under the indirect method, the net profit/(loss) is adjusted for the effects of:

(a) transactions of a non-cash nature;
(b) any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and,
(c) all other items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.
Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are reflected as such in the Cash Flow Statement. Those cash and cash
equivalents which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet are also included under this category with a
specific disclosure.

Current & Non Current classification :

Current Asset :

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

(c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or

(d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.

All other assets shall be classified as non-current.

Current Liabilities:

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date : or

(d) the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date. Terms of a liability that could at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not
effect its classification. All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Co unting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when




2.08
a

b

2.09

~

~

Depreclation and useful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is provided on
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule Il of the Companies act, 2013, However, in case
of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than those prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The
useful life has been assessed based on technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated
usage of the asset on the basis of the management's best estimation of getting economic benefits from the asset. The estimated useful
life as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to accounts.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the period is charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the
date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not

amortized.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated, by keeping
Rs. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and loss
irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. “Ordinarily, the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the original cost of the asset” as specified in Schedule 1I of the
Companies Act, 2013

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of an item of
property plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the statement or profit and loss.

Intangible assets
Rights under Service Concession Arrangements

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits
availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.

Toll Projects (Right to charge users)

Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction services, represent the right to collect toll revenue from the
users of the public service ( road) during the concession period in respect of Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT") project undertaken by
the Company. Toll collection rights are capitalized as intangible assets upon completion of the project at the cumulative construction
costs plus the present value of obligation towards negative grants and additional concession fee payable to National Highways
Authority of India ("NHAI"), if any. Till the completion of the project, the same is recognised under intangible assets under
development.

The cost incurred for work beyond the original scope per Concession agreement (normally referred as "Change of Scope") is
capitalized as intangible asset under development as and when incurred. Reimbursement in respect of such amounts from NHAI are
reduced from the carrying amount intangible assets to the extent of actual receipts.

Extension of concession period by the authority in compensation of claims made are capitalised as part of Toll Collection Rights at the
time of admission of the claim or when there is a contractual right to extension at the estimated amount of claims admitted or
computed based on average collections whichever is more evident.

Any Viability Gap Funding (VGF) in the form of equity support in connection with project construction is accounted as a receivable and
is adjusted to the extent of actual receipts.

Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expenses that are directly attributable to the
development or acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalized as part of cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets that not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets under
development",

Amortisation of intangible assets

Toll collection rights in respect of road projects are amortized over its expected useful life in straight-line method in accordance with
IND AS 38 "Intangible Assets” .

Investments

Trade investments comprise investments in entities in which the Group has strategic business interest.

Investments, which are readily realizable and are intended to be held for not more than one year, are classified as current
investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments.

Long-term investments (excluding investment properties), are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than
temporary, in the value of such investments. Current investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair value. Cost of
investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. The determination of carrying amount of such
investments is done on the basis of weighted average cost of each individual investment.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured in accordance with the requirements of cost model.
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Borrowing costs include interest calculated using the effective interest method, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in
connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilized for acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction /
development of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalization of such asset are added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of
borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development
activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average
number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity
shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually
issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share
splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on current year's taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The
current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Management periodically evaluates, positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and provisions are established where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment
to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the entity will pay normal income tax.
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
entity.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset/liability is realised or settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, when the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity wherein the related tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of
impairment exists. The following intangible assets are tested for impairment each financial year even if there is no indication that the
asset is impaired:

(a) an intangible asset that is not yet available for use; and (b) an intangible asset that is amartized over a period exceeding ten
years from the date when the asset is available for use.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount.
The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount,
in which case any impairment loss of the revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is
available for that asset.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimated future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods
no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the
extent the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets such reversal is not

rarnnniced

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A provision_[s_recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is
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The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable
is recognsied as an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable
estimate is possible . Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets

Investments in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (unless the same
are designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)):

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(unless the same are designated as fair value through profit or loss)
« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial

assets; and
» The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
Debt instruments at FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and all changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI for equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Interest income, dividend income and exchange difference (on debt instrument) on FVTOCI debt instruments is recognised in profit or
loss and other changes in fair value are recognised in OCI and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of debt instruments FVTOCI
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is reclassified to profit & loss. However in case of equity
instruments at FVTOCI cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit & loss on disposal of investments.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities as fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
Loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised costs using Effective Interest Rate method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial guarantee contracts are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost,
debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset and
financial guarantees not designated at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights, Credit
loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract/agreement and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, through the expected life of the
financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the life-time expected credit losses if the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increase significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased
significantly, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected
credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the life-time cash shortfalls that will result if the default
occurs within 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company
uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of a change in the amount
of the expected credit loss. To achieve that, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information,
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount
recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Claims
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under contingent fiabilities. Claims made by the company are
recognised as and when the same is approved by the respective authorities with whom the claim is lodged.

Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed as follows:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid

Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and

Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive
details.

Employee Benefit

Employee benefits include provident fund, superannuation fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated
absences.

i. Short term Employee Benefit

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits.
The benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences etc.

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees
are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future

compensated absences; and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

ii. Post employment benefits

(a) Defined contribution plans:

The Company's superannuation scheme and State governed provident fund linked with employee pension scheme are defined
contribution plans. The contribution paid/ payable under the scheme is recognised during the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

(b) Defined benefit plans:

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
market yield on government securities.

(c ) other long term Employee Benefit
The obligation for other long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences, liability on account of Retention Pay
Scheme are recognised in the same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in (ii)(b) above.
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC115055

Notes to financial statemants as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

3 Proparty, plant and equipment (Re in Lokhs)
Cont or Deemad cost and Carrying Amount
Particulars
Salance uc at April 1, . 2 Balsnce at Aalance ac at April 1, Depreciation N Bstanca at As 3t Mar' 31,
Additions rizpasaly Mar 31, 2023 243z = Dizposale Mar 31, 2023 2021
Property plant and 1 i
FURNTTURE & TTTTINGE E [EED [EET FE 1347 19.63}
CONPUTER 149 747 o8 | 0.76
OFFICE EQUIFHENT _ - o= 1E3.30 108.04 2480 -
INCIDENT VEHICLES .85 116.20 76.09 1.29
Twtal 36.53 ) 325.97 199.58 29.01 -
PREVIOUA YEAR
Tast ar Dewmesd coat Aeeum = et
Particulars Bulance »s ot April 1, y Ralance at Iance as 8t April 1, | Depracistion Balance at As nt Mae’ 31,
21 o ikd Diaposale | wur3s, 2022 2031 opense Difocenls Mar 31,2022 2022
Braparty plant and ! -
FURNITIRE & FITTINGS L 66 - 1654 14T
CoMPUTER RE] - 693 o584
GFFICE EQUIFMENT T70.60 (X33 - 133.20 s EERTH
THCIBENT VEHICLES #1.37 - .77 (L]
Tatal 38203 s.03 - FLTIEL) - [TET]
4 Right ~af-ne Assets LR i ki)
Grues Block et Bl
| Particulars [ Balance as at April 1, Batance st Satancs wt
Additiane, Dispacals Mar3i, 2023 013 Fotthe yesrl[ SDispocals Mar 31, 3023 Mar 21, 2008
L hpld Offics P T.87 - = .87 2.8y 185 = 757 [{EET)
Total T.07 - - 797 3.59 21,99 - 7.97 _{o.o@]
Erevisus yosr LRs b Ealilia)
Grmis Rk Aczumiilaled deprecistion Met Bhack
articutara Balanca as at Aprit 1, Balance al Balance =s al April 1, Balance sl Baiance at
g3t CIED Disposals | yaray. 2022 2021 Forthayear | Dispossle | yiur3yzen Mar 21, 2022
[ g T K 1] - 787 = 153 = iV 1,5%
Total = .57 - 3.7 = a.09 = 2.99 .88
& Intangible saxnts (B i Lakha) |
Coat wr Dozt osal »nd Carrylng Amount
Particulars
Accumulsted
Balance as at April 1, Salance at Dapreciation Balance at As at Mar' 31,
2022 Additicns Dispossie Nar 31, 2023 c sxpense [Dispasaie Nar 31,2023 2023
CARFIAGEWAY 9356370 - - ¥3,505.799 W EA9ET fTE4.E0 - FEA17 17,308.53
Yatal §2,502.70 * - 'Iéﬂ}:@ lﬂ,a' &7 5,784,508 - 75,114.17 17 380.53
PREVIOUS YEAR 1
Cout or Beamad cost and Carrying Amount
focicden Acaimulated
1{
Balance as wt Aprll 1, Balance at o Deprociation Batance st As at Har' 31,
2021 D =5 Mar 31, 2022 depradittion hd axpensa C==o Mar31, 2022 2022
——
CARRIAGE WAY ¥2,503.70 . - ¥2,505.98 03,545.51 584,30 - RIS FENLERE]
Tutsl #3,503.70 - - 93.502.90 #3,545.50 5804.18 - [TRITNE) 33.153.03
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL200SPTC135055
Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

Investment Property (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars LES Lok
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Immovable Property-Land 0.94 0.94
Total 0.54 0.94
The Management expects the realisable value of land to be more than 0.94 Lakhs
Other Non Current Assets (Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
Farticufars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposits
- Security Deposit - Others 0.68 0.68
- Security Deposit - Highway Electricity 35.61 35.37
Total 36.28 36.05
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
L T Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with Banks
-In Current Accounts 5,641.74 596.41
Cash on hand 0.92 1.96
Term Deposit with original maturity of 3 months or less - 4,007.68
Total 5,642.65 4,606.05
Other Bank Balance (Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
2T Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Term Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 menths but 21,320.66 22,456.85
legs than 12 months
Total 21,320.66 22,456.85
Other Financial Asset (Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
e Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Recoverable from NHAI 211.57 B81.62
Recoverable from Bank against ETC 8.27 79.64
Total 219.84 161.26
Current Tax Asset/Liabilities (Net) (Rs In Lakhs)
As at As at
Pattcutars Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current tax Asset
Advance Tax & TDS
- Advance Tax & TDS 2,430.43 3,263.87
- MAT Credit Entitlement - -
2,430.43 3,263.87
3.071.63 3,144.58
(641.21) 119.29
Other Current Assets (Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
R Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Ircon International Ltd. - EPC Claim* 5,040.00 5,040.00
Soma Enterprise Ltd. - EPC Claim* 5,040.00 5,040.00
Contract Assets 65.74 117.12
Others
Prepaid Expenses 93.57 121.54
Imprest 0.35 0.63
Input GST 10.62 23.53
Others - B
Total 10,250.29 10,342.83
*Note : The company has paid Rs.10,080 Lakhs as advance on accounts of daims to EPC Contractors
O - /A
(€]
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

13 Equitv Share Capital

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Mote: 1 SHARE CAPTTAL
AUTHORISED:
Equity Shares of Rs,10/- each 13,000 13,000
13,000 13,000
ISSUED, SBSCRIBED & PAID UP:
Equity Shares of Rs,10/- each fully paid up, 12,774 12,774
Total 12,774 12,774
Foot Notes:
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:
quity Share {R= in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Number Amount in R Humber Amount in s,
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the Year 12,77,40,000 12,774 12,77,40,000 12,774
Equity shares issued during the year - - - -
Less : Shares bought back dunng the year = E - -
Number of equity shares at the end of tha Year 12,77,40.000 12,774 12,37,40,000 12,774

ii Terms and rights attached to equity shares

oo the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

[Tre Company has pnly one tlass of equity shares having a por value of Fx. 107~ per share. Ench holder of equity shares is entieled Lo sae vote per share.

1n the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders f eguity shares will be entitled ta receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of
preferential amounts. The dittritiutisn will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders.The company declares and pays!
dividends in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 1s subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general
meetita, The final dividend on shares is recorded as # lizbility on the date of approval by the shareholders and Interim dividends are recorded ns a llability

Jil, Details of sharsholders holding mors than 5% shares in the company

As at As at
Nama of the Shareholder Mari31,12023 Mara 12022
Mo, of shares held | % of Holding No. of shares held| 9% of HoldIng
|RCCM INTERNATIGNAL LIMITED (1] %.38,70.000 SO
| SEME TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 63863 £,38,69,09 A3,99%
iv. Sharehalding by Promoter
Shares held by promotes as at 31st March, 2023 9 Change during
Promoter’s Name No. of Shares %% af total shares the Year
NTERNATE 6,38,70,000 &0 N
SOME TOLLWAY PRI 6,38,69,999 42.99 .
SCHA EiRTERPRISE LIMITED i .
Total 12,77,40,000 -
[Shares held by promotes a5 at 315t March, 2022 ®% Change during
Promuter's Name No. of Shares % of tatal shaies the Year
[PCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 6,38,70,000 sn -
SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 6,38,69,999 49,99 -
SCMA ENTERPRISE LIMITED 1 aQ =
Total 12,77,40,000 100 -
14 Other Equity (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Surpshus in proft &nd loss Sccount 347269 5,306.83
Tot 3,472,693 530683
Movement in Other Equity {R= in Lakhe)
Particulars Retained Eamings
at tha beg of the rep g period l.e, 01.04.2022 5,306,683
Changes in sccounting policy or prier perfod errors -
d hal; at the beginning of the pericd ;306,83 |
Totsl Comprehensive Income for the year 1,965 87
vidend 3,800.00
lgéhgh at the end of the :lggnms ﬁlﬂ&‘ liw. 31,03.2033 ,472.69
Previous Year = (Rsin Lakhs)
Particulars Retained Earnings
st tha of the ing peried | e 01.04.2021 4, 625.90
Changes In accounting policy or prior period errors -
d bal at the beainni the reporting period 4.625.98
[Total Comprehensive Income for the year 8,880,685
[ilwdengd §,200.00
5,306,03
15 Non- Current Borrowings s In Lakhs]
Particulars As at As st
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Deferred Credit Liability Payable to NHAL 20,550.45 27,747.62
[ Total 30,550.45 37,747.62)

Deferred Credit Liability Pavable to NHATI:

As per the terms of the concessien sgreement the Company fs required ko make a cash pay-out (Le. negative grant }, of wnequal istallment aggregating
to Rs. 595 creres ta Natienal Highways Autherty of India, in between 158 ta 20th year of the tencession pered. The ehligation towards negatne grant

payable to WHAT s recegnized as deferred credit lability whan the Company, In jes

capacity of Concessionairs, becomes antitled to exercise the right snd
o

Date. The total concession fes payable from the project)

callect toll i accardance with the tarms of the i

on G

campletton date till the end of the concession period Is capltalized as a part of cost of Toll Coflection Rights under intangible assets on recognition of}
deferred credit liabllity. The deferred credit liabllity shall stand reduced based on actual payment towards additional concession fee payable to NHAI a1

and when the same Is paid.

p )

oo R b )
(7
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16 Luase Liability < Current

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Lease Liability - ;18
LTutal - 318
17 Long Term i (A% in Lakhs)
Particulars
Asat As at
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Major Maintenance Reserves 4,749.75 3,146.54
Provision for Gratuity 18.22 16.62
Total 4,767.97 3,163.16
18 Current Borrowings = in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31,2023 | Mar 31, 2022 |
Current Maturities of Deferred Credit Liability Pavable to NHAI 10,500,00 B,000.00

IDESDI'I.GHI Iiooﬂ,ﬂu

"y
©

| Total
Trade Payabils®* (Rsin Lakhs)
Particulars As at
Mar 31, 2023 As at
Mar 331, 2022
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small
enterprises® x
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
- Soma Enterprise Ltd 8.04 1.41
=freon Internaticnal Ld 14.85 21.77
- Amount Withheld- Soma = =
EEXE] EERT]
rade 8 = ]
- Routine Maintenance Agencies 197.44 540.31
- Amount Withheld 175.54 155.29
- Retention Money 362.36 773.98
735.34 1,469.58
Tetal 758,23 1,492.96

*according to the records available by the Company, due towards micro enterprise and small enterprises during the year is Nil

{Previous year Nil)
*& Rafer note 34 foF 3aeing

20 Other Financial labilities - Currant

(s in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022

Payables to selated panty
[Payables to Others
Salary Pavable
Liability for Punch List Capital Works
Bonus Payable
Damaae charqe & Fastaq Penalty Pavable

.69 3.2
11.91 11,81
- 0.18
816.45

Other Payable 448.05
a Road users (ETC charge back) 34.78
Total 1,314.65

21 short Tarm Provision

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars
As nt As st
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Major Malntenance Reserves - 1,155.12
Provision for Gratuity 1.50 0.41
Rl 1.50 1,155.52 |
22 Other Currant Habilities (R= in Lakhs)
Particulars
As mt As at
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Statutory Dues Payable 5,71 11437
Total 5.71 11.42
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

Revenue From Operations

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the period ended
Mar 31, 2023

For the period ended
Mar 31, 2022

Revenue from Operations

Sale of Services -Toll Collections 27,994.32 24,323.53
COS Income 82.52 =
Total 28,076.84 24,323.53
Other Income (Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the period ended
Mar 31, 2023

For the period ended
Mar 31, 2022

Interest Income :-

-Interest Received on FDR 1,098.97 869.63
-Interest Received on Security Deposit = 0.01
-Interest Received on Income Tax Refund 0.05 =
Other Income

- Sundry Balance Written back 2.27 36.28
- Others 20.02 8.20
Total 1,121.31 914.12
Operational & Site Maintenance Expenses (Rs in Lakhs)

For the period ended

For the period ended

[ Total

PRI T Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
COS Expense 45.82 =
Road Operating expenses
-Routine Operation Expenses 1,530.81 1,502.74
-Periodic Maintenance Expenses 1,743.97 1,573.27
-Routine Maintenance Expenses 394.22 282.53
-Repair and Maintenance-Carraige Way 410.24 252.81
-Power & Electricity 254.53 234.24
-Water Charges 3.44 3.24
-Salaries of Qutsource Manpower Expenses 24.19 28.35
-Salaries of Deputed Officials from Promoter Co. (IRCON) 115.06 123.26
-Salaries of Deputed Officials from Promoter Co. (SOMA) 52.63 42.92
4,574.89 4,043.36

Employee Benefits Expenses

(Rs in Lakhs)

For the period ended

For the period ended]|

Eaticrise Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Salaries & wages 55.50 56.08
Contribution to Provident Fund & other funds 1.43 1.64
Staff Welfare Expenses 3.43 7.05
Total 60.36 64.76
Finance Cost (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars For the period ended | For the period ended

Mar 31, 2023

Mar 31, 2022

Other Borrowing Costs

Unwinding Interest on MMR and others 3,644.45 3,925.55

Bank Charges 3.66 4.26
Total 3.648.12 3.929.80

Depreciation and Amortisation (Rs in Lakhs)

For the period ended

For the period ended

EEIEICU e Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 29.01 34.46
Depreciation on Lease Assets 3.99 3.99
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 5,764.50 5,804.16
Total 5.797.50 5.842.61

O -
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Other Expenses

(Rs in Lakhs)

For the period ended

For the period ended

el Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 5.92 5.72
Advertisement/Public Awareness Expenses 15.56 13.22
Telephone/Internet Expenses 7.82 6.97
Courier & Postage Expenses 0.33 0.33
Printing & Stationery 1.93 3.05
Fees & Subscription including ROC fees 2.17 0.11
Legal & Professional Charges 11.38 69.92
Rent/Rates & Taxes 0.62 1.74
Repair & Maintenance - Office 0.13 0.23
Independent Consultancy charges (NHAI) 88.06 97.74
Fastag Penalty 258.30 748.79
Insurance Charges 3.05 2.90
CSR Expenses 154.29 90.22
CSR Expenses Unspent 7.03 92.46
Arbitration Expenses 29.77 4.59
Miscellaneous Expenses 8.87 0.06

Total 595.25 1,138.04

Details of CSR Expenditure:

(Rs in Lakhs)

For the period ended

For the period ended

RS HSLISE Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022

Opening Unspent Amount 92.46 56.83
Amount to be spent by the company during the year 161.32 125.85
Total amount required to be spent 253.78 182.68
a) Amount Spent during the period 154.29 90.22
b) Amount spend for previous activities 92.46 =
Un-spend Amount as on closing Date 7.03 92.46
c) Amount provisioned for ongoing projects - 23.83
d) Amount provisioned for other than ongoing projects 7.03 68.63
Yearwise pending Summary:

a) Unspent amount for FY 2020-21 - For Ongoing Project - 23.83

b) Unspent amount for FY 2021-22 - For Other than Ongoing

Project - 68.63

¢) Unspent amount for FY 2022-23 - For Other than Ongoing

Project 7.03

Reason for Shortfall

The amount shall be
spend in next year

THe armount snall be
spend in next year

Movement in CSR Provision:

For the period ended

For the period ended

59

Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Remaining Provision for CSR Made during the last year 92.46 56.83
Less: Actual Expenditure made during the year against the
remaining provision of last year 92.46 33.00
Add: Remaining Provision for CSR made during the current year 7.03 68.63
[CTosing figure of Provision 7.03 92.46
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

Financial Instruments
Disclosure of Financial Instruments by Category
b As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Eihancalipstrumentsbyicationesh SN LS, FVTPL FVTOCT Amortized cost FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents 8 - - 5,642.65 - = 4,606.05
Other bank balance 9 - - 21,320.66 - - 22,456.85
Other financial assets - Current 10 = - 219.84 = = 161.26
Tatal Financial Asset - - 27,183,185 - - 27.224.16
Financial liability
Borrowings 15 & 18 - - 31,050.45 - = 35,747.62
Lease Liabilities 16 - = - = E 4.18
Trade Payables 19 - - 758.23 - - 1,492.76
Other Financial Liabilities - Current 20 - - 1,484.R0 = - 1,314.65
Total Finandial Liabilities - = 33,203.47 - = 3B,559.21
Fair value of Financial asset and liabilties at amortized cost & level of fair value measurement for which fair values are disclosed
As al March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
N . i
Earteutar ote B2 Carrylng amount Falr value Level Carrying Falr value Level
amount
Financial asset
Cash and cash equivalents 8 5,642.65 5,642.65 |Level 3 4,606.05 4,606.05 |Level 3
Other bank balance 9 21,320.66 21,320.66 |Level 3 22,456.85 22,456.85 |Level 3
Other financial assets - Current 10 219.84 219.84 |Level 3 161.26 161.26 |Lavel 3
Total Financial Asset 27,183.15 27,183.15 27,224.16 27,224.16
Financial liability
Borrowings 15818 31,050.45 31,050.45 |Level 3 35,747.62 35,747.62 |Level 3
Lease Liabilities 16 - - |Level 3 4.18 4.18 |Level 3
Trade Payables 19 758.23 758.23 |Level 3 1,492,76 1,492,76 |Level 3
Other Financial Liabilities - Current 20 1,484 RO 1,484.80 |Level 3 1,314.65 1.314.65 |Level 3
Total Financial Linbilities .47 293,47 .21 38.,559.21
The carrying amount of current linancial assels and current trade and other payables measured at amortised cost are congidered to be the same as thair fair values, due to their

short term nature.
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74992DL2005PTC135055
Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

Financial Risk Management

The company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Board of Directors has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of Directors has established a risk
management policy to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodicaily to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Board of Directors oversee compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the risk management framework.

Market risk
The market risk is the risk that the fair vajue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market

risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rate.

The company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as it has no borrowing or no material payables in foreign currency.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Interest risk arises to the company mainly from Long term borrowings with variable rates. Currently company has no borrowings.

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than

those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk}.

The company is exposed to price risk due to investments in mutual funds and classified as fair value through profit and loss.

The company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.

The company's risk management policy is to mitigate the risk by investments in diversified mutual funds.

The company is not exposed to Price risk as on year ending as it has no investment in financial instruments that fluctuate because of changes in
market rate,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial assets.

The company is exposed to liquidity risk due to bank borrowings and trade and other payables.

The company measures risk by forecasting cash flows.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company ensures that it has sufficient fund to meet
expected operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities

(Rs in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying Amount upto 1 year 1i-2vyears 2 -5 years >5 years
Non Derivative Financial Liability
Borrowings 31,050.45 10,500 12,500 B, 050 -
Lease Linbilities - - = 5 E
Traue Payables 758.23 758,73 - - =
Other Financial Liabilities = Current 1.484.80 1,484.80 - - -
Derivative Financial Liability NIL NIL NIL Nl NI
As at March 31, 2022 Carrying Amount upto 1 year 1-2years 2-5 years > 5 vears
Non Derivative Financial Linbifity
Borrowlnos 35,747.6 8.000.00 10,500.00 17,247.62 -
Lense i iabilities 4.1 4.18 = = T
Trade Payables 1,492.7, 1,492.76 - - <
Other Financinl Lizbilities - Current 1,314.65 1,314.65 . = -
Derivative Financial Lizbility MIL NIL NIL HIL MIL
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that ane party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

The company generally does not have trade receivables as collection of toll income coincide as and when the traffic passes through toll - plazas. In
case ETC receivable is bank.Hence, the management believes that the company is not exposed to negligible credit risk.

kO. Codrats
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As at Mar 31, 2023

IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

34 Trade Payable ageing Schedule

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total
payment
Less than 1 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs. More than 3
yr. yrs.
(i) MSME - 5 - - -
(ii) Others 435.46 105.66 165.02 52.08 758.23

(iii) Disputed dues-
MSME

(iv) Disputed dues-
Others

As at March 31, 202

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total
Less than 1 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs. More than 3
yr. yrs.
(i) MSME - - - - -
(ii) Others 1,129.19 224.14 120.52 18.91 1,492.76

(iii) Disputed dues-
MSME

(iv) Disputed dues-

Others
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055

Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

Ratio's

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As on 31 March 2023

As on 31 March 2022

(i) Current Ratio:
Current Assets (a)
Current Liabilities (b)
Current Ratio (a/b)

a. Variance : -11.1%
b. Reason for Changes maore than 25%: NA

ii) Debt Service coverage Ratio :

Net Profit/ (Loss) After Taxes (a)

Depreciation and Amortization Expense (b)
Interest Expense ('c)

Other non cash adjustment (d)

Earnings available for Debt Services (e) (a+b+c+d)
Total Debt repaid (f)

Interest Liability repaid {(g)

Total Debt including Interest (h} (f+g)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (e/h)

a. Variance : 15%

b. Reason for Changes more than 25%: Increase in net profit
after tax for the year compared to previous year

iii) Return on Equity Ratio :
Net Profit after Taxes (a)
Average Equity Shareholder's Fund (b)
Return on Equity Ratio (%) (a/b)
a. Variance : 39%
b. Reason for Changes more than 25%: Increase in net profit
after tax for the year compared to previous year
iv) Inventory Turnover Ratio : NA

v) Trade Receivables turnover Ratio : NA

37,433

37,686

13,391

11,979

2.8:1

11,966
5,797
3,644

21,408

8,881
5,843
3,926

3.15:1

18,649

8,000

8,000

8,000

8,000

2.676 Times

11,966
17,164

2,34 Times

8,881
17,740

69.72%

50.06%
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IRCON - SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN. No. U74999DL2005PTC135055
Notes to financial statements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

35

Ratio's

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As on 31 March 2023

As on 31 March 2022

vi) Trade Payables turnover Ratio :
Purchases of services and other expenses (a)
Average Trade Payables (b)

Trade Payables turnover Ratio (a/b)

a. Variance : 54.3%
b. Reason for Changes more than 25%: Due to repayments

vii) Net Capital turnover Ratio :

Sales (a)
Working capital (Current Assets - Current Liabilities) (b)
Net Capital turnover Ratio (a/b)

a. Variance : 23.4%
b. Reason for Changes more than 25%: NA

viii) Net Profit Ratio :
Profit after Tax (a)
Sales (b)
Net Profit Ratio (%) (a/b)

a. Variance : 17%
b. Reason for Changes more than 25%: Increase in Net profit
after Tax for period compared to previous year.

ix) Return on Capital Employed :
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (a)
Interest Expense (b)
Earnings before Interest and Taxes (c) (a+b)

Total Assets (d)

Less : Total Liabilities ( e)

Less : Intangible Assets (f)

Tangible Net Worth (g = d-e-f)

Deferred Tax Liability (h)

Total Debt (i)

Capital Employed (j) (g+h+i)

Return on Capital Employed (%) (c/f)

a. Variance : 32%
b. Reason for Changes more than 25%: NA

x) Debt - Equity Ratio

Total Debt (a)

Share Capital

Reserve and Surplus

Shareholder's Equity (b)

Debt - Equity Ratio (Times) (a/b)

a. Variance : -3%
b. Reason for Changes more than 25%: NA

xi} Return On Investments NA

3,426
1,125

28,077
24,042

3.04

1.17

3,608
1,830

24,324
25,708
0.95

11,966
28,077

42.62%

8,881
24,324
36.51%

14,522
3,644

18,166

10,219
3,926
14,145

54,957
-38,710
-17,389

-1,142

31,050

29,909

60,970
-42,889
-23,153

-5,072

35,748
30,675

12,774
3,473

60.74%

31,050

16,247

46.11%

35,748

12,774
5,307
18080.82784

1.92 Times

1.98 Times
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IRCON - SOMATOLLWAY ERIVAT
CIN. No.U749930L2005PTC135055

tatements as at and for the period ended 31st March 2023

Notex to finan.

36 Disclaxures pursuont to Ind AS 1 - of Finandal
Far the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equily capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The

primary objective of the campany's capital management is to maximise shareholder value.

37 The Company does not have any transaction to which the provision of Ind AS-2 relating to Valuation of Inventories applies.

38 Disdosure pursunnt to Ind AS 12 - "Income taxes”
The company is eligible for deduction under section 80lA of Income Tax Act and the tax holiday perlad of the company’s project falls within lhe concession period of the

company as defined in Sectlon B0IA.The Company had taxahle Income during current year, however no pravision for current tax has been made in view of the fact that it is

eligible for deduction under 801A of Income tax Act,1961 except llabllity of tax arising an account of applicabllity of provisions of section 11518 l.e.Minimum Alternative Tax .

Since tax on Timing difference between Accaunting Income and Taxable Income that arise during Lhe year Is reversing during such tax holiday period,no deferred tax asset/

llability arises and accordingly no provisian Is made in the accounts.

39 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Emplovee benefits”:

Defined-Benefits Plans: The Company offers ils employees defined-benefit plans in the form of a gratuity scheme (a lump sum amount) , Benefits under the defined benefit

plans are typleally based on yesrs of service and the employee's i before ). The gratulty scheme covers substantially all regular &
[ are at year-end, The actuarial valuation is done based on “Projected Unit Credit” method. Galns and losses of

chenged actuarial assumptions are charged to Other Comphrehensive Income

Gratuity
Particulurs Asal Az at
Mar33 3033 1 Marai 3022
Reconcillalion of opening & dosing balances of FV 17,03 1TAE
of defined benefit abligati
Dpguing defingd hevafit ellizstion
Current servicn Cott F¥er) 141
T T .77
[ wf actunrial osh bl ti
=t chanas i laancial T 10,01} 1.7
e te changa |n -
nto 0,37 3.1
|P2et sarvice gast -
|Lass (g2in) oo curtatments =
! d_en seiik .
Lisbilities sasured in 3n amalgsmation in the nature
af.
}srhange differance oo foreign olany re
anafits palds .
Closing defined benefit obligation 18,72 17.03
Amount ized in the Balance Sheet
Curr=nt Lahiky [T
tisn Corrant Ussilty 18,81
liat Assat /{Lisbilit 4 In Balance Shest 17.03
in the of PaL
urtant fereics Cont L2 141
rferwst Cosy an Gensefd Oblinsten 2.1 273
a1l 3aniize copd i .
‘atal included in ! Ecnefil Expende’ 2,03 2.20
[ Othas henalve Incoers bt the surrent perod
= & sctuprssligaln/ireyes w gl
Em ty Chsnga in financiat 10,63} 18,73}
Cue to cinnoe in
Mizis 3 %3] 2.12
Return an plan sttty escliding amsumts indluded In
|nterast incama
Amounts recognized in  Other Comprehensive (0.24) 238
[ Expene
Tirmmary =f Ak TA
2.35% LTS
055 6.00%
witharawel rete 5% at younger | $% at younger age
age reducing to | reducing to 1 % at
4 6L at pldar slier agp
fate of Befyrn pn slan Sguetc A A
Senaitivity tn bey i
Particulars [3iHar-2023 [a1-Mar-z022
{1l menthe) (22 months}
Dizcunt rate SanumViey
Increase by 0.5% 19.14 16.46
(% chanae) +2.95% -3.35%
Decrease by 0.5% 20.33 17.63
(% chenae) 3.07% 3.50%
Selary arowth rate Sensitivity
Increase by 0.5% 20.33 17.63
(% change) 3.08% 3.50%
Degease by 0.5% 19,13 16.45
(% change) -2.99% -3,38%
Withdrawal rate (W.R.) Sensltivity
W.R X 110% 19.74 17.04
{% change) 0.10% 0,09%
W.R. X 90% 19.70 17.01
{% chanaa) -0,10% -

K. Loovizads
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& deseription of methods weed tar ity anebysis snd it Lo

Sensitivty analysis Is performed by varying a single parameter while keeping all the olher parameters unchanged Sensitivity analysls fails o focus on the Interrelatiolnship
between underlying parameters.Hence, the resulls may vary If two or more variables are changed simultangously.The method used does not indicate anything about the
likellhood of change In any parameter and the extent of the chane if any,

40 Di toInd AS 22 " ing Costs"

Borrowling cost capitalised during the year Nil. (previous year @ Nil),

41 Disclosure of related parties / related party transactions punsuant o Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”
A. List of related parties and relationghip*
Entitiss having Significent Contral wver the Cemaany
IRCON Inlernational Umited
SOMA Entarfitiee Levitad
ey Mansgsrial Pars

wmals
ANKTHEEDU MASANT]- Director
RAJEEV KALRA- Director
PEVENDAA KUMAR SHARMA- Diroetsr
MASDOD AKMAD- Dirsctsr
SHWETA CHAWLA- Company Secratary
NILKAR UMAKANTH- CFO

“wilth whom the Company has transaction during Lhe year.
B. Transactions & Closing Halances with rolated parti,

Amzunt in B1

3033-33 I031-33
FE—— . "
Name/ — L i Duse o Due from Rk ot Dus= to Due from
TRCON International Limitad
£°C Warke - - 5,040 - * 5,040
of Evp/Othara 116,08 1455 - 12757 ALIL =
Total 2 14.85 5,040 127.67 21.77 5,040
[soMa Lisniitmd —
EPC Works z = S.040 - = 5.040
Relmbursement of Exp/Others | 52.63 8,04 - 42,92 141 -
Tutal 5163 Bl 5.040 47.92 1.8 5.240
Chiel Finapsial Officer
‘Tther 1457 1537
Gratutdy r: = = 190 [ 1) -
merelary
‘Dthes [X°F] - - 216 = =

42 Disdacure pursuant to Ind AS 33 "Earninge per share'
Basde and [luted Earmings gar share (EE0Y comadted in accerdinrm with Ted A% 33 “Eaniligy par g

Particulars Unit

Enrmings Par Eauify Sharm:
atit tor the year sttrtiufable te swnors of the Camipany Rupeas 1,19,66,10,448 £0,83,22,384
Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding Numbers 12,77,40,000 12,77,40,000
for aaleulating basic earnings per share
Basic Erninga per Share Hupeas 937 6.95
Diluted Eamings par Share Rupeoe 937 655

A As at
March 21, 2022 | Hargh 31, 3033

43 Disdosures as per Ind AS 37 - “Provisions, Contingent Liabiltics and Contingent aasets "
a) MNature of pravislon:
The company Is required to aperate snd malintala the project highway during the entire concession perlad and hand over the project back to the Autharity (NHAT) as par the
P in Concesslon

For this purpose, a regular maintenance along with periodic maintenances is raquired to be performed. Normslly pariodic maintenance Indudes resurface of psvements, repalrs
af and olher and of service roads.

As per Industry practice, the periodic maintenance Is axpected to occur afler 5-7 years. The mbintenance cost /  bituminous overlay may vary based on the sctual usage during
malintenance period. Aczordingly on the grounds of malching cost concept and basad on technical estimates, a provision for major maintenance sxpensas Is reviewed and Is
provided for in the accounts annuslly.

b) in pravlal
Particulars As ut As at
21 Mareh 3623_J el

Opuning hatshis 4.301.66 4,875 09
Additicnal previsizn 1,743.57 1,573.27
Utdlised (1,637.28) {4,300.70)
Unused amaimnts reversed -
Unwinding aof discount and changes In discount rate 4 153,56

Llosing belance 4,748.75 4301008

€) Conti Liabitias & C
a) Contingent liablities-Claims ngainst the company not scknawledgad as dabt :~ EPC contractors had duimad Rs.172,69,72,965 (PY Rs.172,69,72,965) as losses for various
renson such us idling of resources,additional overhead cost ,Ingeasa In royallies rate etc.

b) The Income Tax Department served notice u/s 263 and u/s 271{I){C)of Income tax act, 1961 to the company for the assessment year 2012-13 and 2013-14 towards
diallowance of depreclation cliimad by company on nagative grant payable to NHAI and initiation of panalty for the same respactively. An appas has been flled before CIT
(Appesl) ngainst the order and proceading Is due on 12th June, 2023.

<) Capital Commitments : NIl
d) Damand as per TRACES partal as on 31st March, 2023 i Rs S6.65 Lakhs (Pravious year-NIL)

4) Contingent Asacts

The werlauz delms hggregated to RS, 742,19 crdres (PY. Mo 74298 orarma) o8 scceunt of delay |n EROW, change In liw, delay In paymant of grant, extensizn of tme of
project, lilimy enst uf resourcns and |sox of revenue ele hos been sutmitted by Compatiy o dinot MO Hatienat Highway Authority of India, (MHALL Furthar, against the above
dalms, the Arbltration Tribunal has awsrded sam af Ba 157,63,584,477 I feveur st ISTPL vide order fsied on 27/04/72021 read with corrsstinh in Award letine dated
22/06/2021 and the paymant of the same shall be mads to ISTPL within threa month from tha dete of sward. If the aforasald award amaunt Is not psid within thres months of
the date of award, further interest {@12% per annum-simpla) shall be pald thareon from 27.04.2021 tHi date of paymant,

orwover, the Campany has decided to challenge the Arbitrational Award u/s 34 of tha Arbitrstion Act as per Circular resolution No 72 dated 16.09.2021 and accordingly
petition has baen filed In Hon'ble High Court on 241h April, 2023,
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Notes forms Integral part of the Financial Statements

A3 per our report of Even date pttacnes
UPTA NAYAR & CO. . -
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ~ x
(Firm's Registration No. 00 -
g ' A ANKINEEDU MAGANTI

For G!

Payments to Auditer {(Including GET)

As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2023
_Rupsss fupees

(a} Statutory Aumit Fee 2,36,000
(b) Other Services (Opinion / Certification Fees) 32,400 12,960
(c) Tax Audit Fee - -

1] Limited Revinw

Total 3,60,400] 2,480,560

There have been no claimed transactions during the year with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED)
Act 2006.

Foreign Currency Tranactions

NIt (Prevous Year Nil)
(1) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(u) CIF value of import NIl (Prevous Year Nif)
(i)} FOB value of Export Nil (Prevous Year Nil)
(v) Earnngs in Foreign Exchange Nil {Prevous Year Nil)
(v) Remntance in Foreign Exchange Nl (Prevous Year Nil)

Disclosure pursuant to Impact of Covid 19

The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains undear at present as on reporting date. Hence, it is not possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity of these
consequences, as well as their impact on the financial pasition and results of the Company for future p:rmds. However, the company is protected by the clauses 29,6 of the
Concession Agreement to claim such loss under force majeure event in the form of revenue loss c by way of ion of the ion period. The of
the Company will study the impact & the appropriate claim will be lodged . Accordingly, the financial position and results of operations as of and for the year ended 31st March 2023
have not been adjusted to reflect their impact.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 36 "Impalrment of Assets”
Based on a review of the future discounted cash flows of the project facility, the recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount and hence no provision for impairment is

made for the year.

Disclosure of segment informatlon pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments"
The Company is engaged In the business of construction, operation and maintenance of Toll road projects on a Build Operate Transfer basis in a single business segment. Hence

reporting of operating segments does not arise. The Company does not have operations outside India. Hence, disclosure of geographical segment information does not arise.

Standard lasued but not affective @

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up ta the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company Intends to
adopt these standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified certain amendments to Ind AS, through Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on 31st March, 2023 and has amended the following standards:

1. Ind AS 101 - First-time adoption of Ind AS

Z.Ind A5 102 - Ehare-based Payment

3. Ind AS 103 - Business Cambinations

4.4nd AS 107 = Finariclal Instrumants: Disclotures

S. Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

6.Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
7IndAS 1 - of Finandial

8.Ind AS 8 - Accounting Pelices, change in Estimates and Errors
9.Ind AS 12 - Income Tazzs

10.0nd AS 34 - [nterim Fingndal Reportmg

These amendments shall come into force with effect from April 01, 2023.
The Company is assessing the potential effect of the amendments on its financial statements. The Company will adopt these if it from i date.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Minlstry of Corporate Affalrs ("MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time on March 31,2023, MCA the Ct ies (Indlan A ing Standards) Rules, 2023 as below:

1} Ind AS1- Pr ion of Financlal - This requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policles rather than their significant accounting policies,
The effective date for edaption of this amendmaent |s an annusl periods Beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the
|5 Inalgr 1in the financial

2) Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error - This amendment has introduced a ition of * il and included to
Ind AS B to help entltles distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes In accounting estimates. The effective date for adoptlon of this amendment Is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements,

3) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the Initlal recognition exemptlon so that is does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after Aprill, 2023, The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there Is no Impact on its standalone financial statement.

Useful life for Depreciation on Property . Plant & Equlpments

Depreciation is provided based on useful life supp by the i considering business specific usage, the consumption pattern of the assets and the past
performance of similar assets.
Estimated useful lite of assets are as follows:

Useful life
Useful llves as | adopted based on
Class of Assets per Schedule technical

II (In Years) evaluation (in

Tt 1 4 aidential ® (]
Plant and Machinary * B-15
Survey 30
[Computars 36
Difice 2] 5-10
Furniture mnad fixtures id
Caravans, Camay and v ehed 3-5
Wehicles 810 E-10

* Each significant component of the asset has been considered for determination of useful life of

In the opinlon of the Board, the current assets, advances, have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the
Balance Sheet.

There were no litigatlon pending agalnst the company which could be materially Impact Its financlal position as at the end of the year.

Information with regard to other matters specified In Schedule III to the Act Is either nil or not applicable to the company for the year.

The financial Statement sre approved for Issue by the company's Board of Directors on 20/05/2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Additlonal Director

DIN-00029900
h f

Iy

4 )
Satyabhama Gupta .f:%ETA CHAWLA NILKAR UMAKANTH
(Partner) Company Secretary I’Inlnt!nl officer
Membership No. 073295 FCs-11502 g <b
SRINIVAS I
Place: fow Dain Chiuf Operating Officer
Date:
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IRCON-SOMA TOLLWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
ISTPL)

(A Joint Venture Company of Ircon International Limited, Soma Enterprise Limited

and Soma Tollways Private Limited)

Registered & Corporate Office: C-4, District Centre,
Saket, New Delhi -110017, India Tel.: 011-26545780,
Email: cs.istpl@irconsoma.com,

Website: www.irconsoma.com




	Microsoft Word - final cover pages & reference

	data[0]: 
	Letter[0]: 
	Sign[0]: 
	Name_ROC[0]: 





